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Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Directors 
KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Olathe, Kansas 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of KVC Health Systems, Inc., which comprise the 
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated 
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of KVC Health Systems, Inc. as of June 30, 2022 
and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements" section of our report. We are required to be independent of KVC Health Systems, 
Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about KVC Health 
Systems, lnc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated 
financial statements are available to be issued. 

/7') PRAXIT'I r� ....... •···••-- . 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated 
financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of KVC Health Systems, lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about KVC Health Systems, lnc.'s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole. The consolidating schedules, statements of functional expenses, grant schedules and 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 

200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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The schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the identified accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

The consolidating schedules, statements of functional expenses and grant schedules have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 15, 
2022 on our consideration of KVC Health Systems, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of KVC Health Systems, Inc. 's internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering KVC Health Systems, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

FOltV IS, �t,P 

Kansas City, Missouri 
December 15, 2022 

DHHR FINANCE 

JAN - '3 202.3 

RECEIVED 



KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2022 
Assets 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,338,500 
Investments I02,061 
Accounts receivable 16,317,260 
Unbilled receivables 2,682,481 
Contributions receivable 1,842,149 
Grants receivable 3,663,0(?7 
Prepaid expenses and other 1,253,864 

Total current assets 32,199,382 

Property and Equipment, Net 35,904,625 

Contributions Receivable I04,396 

Other Assets 

Goodwill 545,000 
Funds held for deferred compensation 521,419 
Deposits and other assets 458,154 

1,524,573 

Total assets $ 69,732,976 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current Liabilities 

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 1,761,129 
Accounts payable 1,215,238 
Accrued salaries 2,812,246 
Accrued compensated absences 2,477,726 
Other accrued expenses 6,269,718 
Deferred revenue 324,300 

Total current liabilities 14,860,357 

Long-term Debt 5,889,104 

Deferred Compensation Obligation 521,419 

Total liabilities 21,270,880 

Net Assets 

Without donor restrictions 46,062,375 
With donor restrictions 2,399,721 

Total net assets 48,462,096 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 69,732,976 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2021 

$ 17,666,075 
97,869 

14,582,421 
2,686,081 

244,200 
2,300,866 
1,260,560 

38,838,072 

31,074,815 

230,390 

545,000 
408,149 
270,974 

1,224,123 

$ 71,367,400 

$ 7,528,881 
2,064,754 
4,838,800 
2,439,591 
3,773,555 

292,802 

20,938,383 

12,340,407 

408,149 

33,686,939 

36,669,294 
1,011,167 

37,680,461 

$ 71,367,400 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Activities 

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Revenues, Gains and Other Support Without 

Donor Restrictions 

Reintegration and adoption services 
Child placing services 
Inpatient services 
Family preservation, in-home and residential services 
Contributions and grants 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues, gains and other support without 
donor restrictions 

Operating Expenses 

Client care 
Administrative and general 
Fundraising 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Other Income 

Debt forgiveness income 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 

Contributions and grants received for property acquisitions 
Net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions 

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

Contributions received for property acquisitions 
Net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 

Net Assets, End of Year 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

$ 

$ 

2022 2021 

32,397,400 $ 33,714,997 
39,970,567 43,424,864 
35,087,798 34,099,873 
24,801,979 22,733,553 
6,098,894 6,047,185 

9,789 81,367 
7,199,009 3,603,546 

145,565,436 143,705,385 

129,868,573 123,986, 197 
15,980,841 14,511,998 

671,702 646,176 

146,521, 1 16 139,144,371 

(955,680) 4,561,014 

5,969,627 553,330 

5,013,947 5,114,344 

3,367,967 
1,011,167 

9,393,081 5,114,344 

2,399,721 1,011,167 
(1,011,167) 

10,781,635 6,125,511 

37,680,461 31,554,950 

48,462,096 $ 37,680,461 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative 
Care and General Fund raising 

Salaries and wages $ 59,210,035 $ 7,595,162 $ 462,761 
Payroll taxes 4,649,137 550,853 36,380 
Employee benefits 9,634,398 1,040,874 49,342 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 73,493,570 9,186,889 548,483 

Office supplies and printing 231,338 77,349 15,836 
Copier and fax expense 215,661 24,713 
Postage 66,099 26,275 1,728 
Employee recruitment and advertising 290,410 86,081 100 
Licenses and dues 116,649 188,892 19,694 
Insurance 2,867,487 177,326 8,535 
Travel 1,055,150 82,197 1,351 
Telephone ·1,000,341 143,683 4,869 
Professional fees 502,660 989,423 
Contract labor 1,068,125 25,152 
Contract physicians 4,471,150 
Contract unallowable expenses 290,609 735 
Consulting and other contractual expenses 1,101,897 353,681 9,339 
Staff development 479,414 471,906 894 
Promotion 394,911 24,292 3,916 
Office rent 1,796,374 93,090 26,612 
Equipment expenses 1,023,148 1,380,275 4,954 
Network services 188,576 298,060 
Maintenance and repairs 642,536 124,798 I 

Safety services and materials 287,185 44,586 161 
Food 1,214,568 686 425 
Food - outings 85,816 38,806 1,998 
Housekeeping supplies 129,481 8,539 
Miscellaneous housekeeping 1,070,780 68,182 
Utilities 816,727 119,002 247 
Payments to foster parents 30,266,298 23 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 105,074 
Foster family training 207,836 
Child care payments 62,086 
Medical supplies 822,595 131 
Vehicle expenses and repairs 316,329 19,567 3,253 
Vehicle rental 521,145 74,140 17,875 
General program supplies 687,099 14,729 1,408 
Clothing 33,126 
Miscellaneous 58,059 41,934 
Interest 22,034 530,701 
Bad debts 10,621 
Property tax expense 7,840 1,428 
Medicaid assessments 14,643 
Flex fund 1,187,924 
Kids activity fund 43,202 

Expenses before depreciation 
and intercompany fees 129,266,573 14,717,248 671,702 

Depreciation 602,000 1,263,593 
lntercompany management fees 13,467,493 
lntercompany services (344,508) 91,425 237,703 
Intercompany rent 2,191,777 575,295 
Eliminations (1,847,269) (14,134,213) (237,703) 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 $ 129,868,573 $ 15,980,841 $ 671,702 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Total 
Expenses 

$ 67,267,958 
5,236,370 

10,724,614 

83,228,942 

324,523 
240,374 

94,102 
376,591 
325,235 

3,053,348 
1,138,698 
1,148,893 
1,492,083 
1,093,277 
4,471,150 

291,344 
1,464,917 

952,214 
423,119 

1,916,076 
2,408,377 

486,636 
767,335 
331,932 

1,215,679 
126,620 
138,020 

1,138,962 
935,976 

30,266,321 
105,074 
207,836 
62,086 

822,726 
339,149 
613,160 
703,236 

33,126 
99,993 

552,735 
10,621 
9,268 

14,643 
1,187,924 

43,202 

144,655,523 

1,865,593 
13,467,493 

(15,380) 
2,767,072 

(16,219,185) 

$ 146,521,116 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consol idated Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Client Administrative 
Care and General Fundralsln9 

Salaries and wages s 55,843,324 s 6,435,857 s 424,887 

Payroll taxes 4,445,847 460,490 32, 1 38 
Employee benefits 9,326, 1 53 850,939 34, 126 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 69,61 5,324 7,747,286 491 , 1 5 1  

Office supplies and printing 2 13,860 6 1 ,404 6,456 

Copier and fax expense 199,037 46,243 166 

Postage 70,473 29,235 2,752 
Employee recruitment and advertising 5 1 ,351  96,446 4,250 
Licenses and dues 1 88,082 19 1 ,963 20,822 
Insurance 2,750,285 1 30, 168 691 
Travel 482,328 24,3 1 7  80 
Telephone 1 ,006,237 160,056 4,493 
Professional fees 253,804 7 14,840 
Contract labor 3 12,600 5,250 
Contract physicians 3,954,361 
Contract unallowable expenses 1 5 1 ,4 16  1 ,566 1 2  
Consulting and other contractual expenses 1 , 1 14,954 5 18,954 1 7,058 

Staff development 44 1 ,2 1 7  434,795 1 ,229 
Promotion 102,23 1 1 9,886 

Office rent 2, 145,564 95,503 4,069 
Equipment expenses 830,903 1 ,395,458 837 
Network services 234,775 445,627 
Maintenance and repairs 581 ,535 80,6 19  39  
Safety services and materials 240,160 5 1 .303 
Food 1 ,099,985 20 
Food - outings 58,7 16 10,709 656 
Housekeeping supplies 1 25,7 19 4,484 
Miscellaneous housekeeping 1 ,00 1 ,684 34,663 
Utilities 673,683 124 , 192 288 

Payments to foster parents 3 1 ,877,754 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 9 1 , 199 
Foster family training 1 54,832 
Child care payments 54, 1 89 
Medical supplies 739,464 
Vehicle expenses and repairs 327,373 10,728 3, 1 57 
Vehicle rental 635,0 1 2  64,596 9,500 
General program supplies 723,633 (4,902) 1 ,82 1 
Clothing 33,550 
Miscellaneous 32,8 1 1  46,455 76,649 
Interest 93,100 7 19,759 
Bad debts 25,947 (30,724) 
Property tax expense 7,504 3 19 
Medicaid assessments 2 1 ,964 
Flex fund 680, 1 37 32 
Kids activity fund 38,5 1 7  

Expenses before depreciation 
and intercompany fees 1 23,437.270 13,23 1 ,250 646, 1 76 

Depreciation 548,927 1 ,280,748 
lntercompany management fees 12,564,61 6  
lntercompany services 2,650 62,822 
lntercompany rent 1 ,777,823 566,400 
Eliminations ( 1 ,780,473) ( 1 3 , 193,838) 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2021 s 1 23,986,1 97 s 14,5 1 1 ,998 s 646, 1 76 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Total 
Expenses 

s 62,704,068 
4,938,475 

1 0,2 1 1 ,2 18  
77,853,761 

281 ,720 
245,446 
1 02,460 
1 52,047 
400,867 

2,88 1 , 144 
506,725 

1 , 170,786 
968,644 

3 17,850 

3,954,361 
1 52,994 

1 ,650,966 
877,24 1 
1 22, 1 17 

2,245, 1 36 
2,227,198 

680,402 
662. 193 
291 ,463 

1 , 100,005 
70,081 

1 30,203 
1 ,036,347 

798, 163 
3 1,877,754 

9 1 , 199 
1 54,832 
54,189 

739,464 
341 ,258 
709, I08 
720,552 
33,550 

1 55,9 1 5  
8 12,859 

(4,777) 
7,823 

2 1 ,964 
680, 169 
38,5 17  

1 37.3 1 4,696 

1 ,829,675 
1 2,564,616  

65,472 
2,344,223 

( 14,974,3 1 1 ) 

$ 139,144,371 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Operating Activities 

Change in net assets $ 
Items not requiring (providing) operating activities cash flows 

Depreciation 

Debt forgiveness 

Contributions and grants received for property acquisitions 
Provision and discounts on contributions receivable 
Unrealized (gains) losses on investments 

Changes in 
Accounts receivable 
Unbilled receivables 
Grants receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Other assets 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries 
Accrued compensated absences 
Other accrued expenses 
Net pension liability 
Deferred revenue 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Investing Activities 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Purchase of investments 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing Activities 
Proceeds from contributions and grants restricted 

for acquisition of long-lived assets 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 

Principal payments on long-term debt 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 

Supplemental Cash Flows Information 
Interest paid $ 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2022 2021 

1 0,78 1 ,635 $ 6, 1 25,5 1 1 

1 ,865,593 1 ,829,675 

(5,969,627) (553,330) 

(5,767,688) ( 1 ,0 1  I ,  1 67) 

(5,606) (30,724) 
1 4,976 (29,978) 

( I, 734,839) 4,2 1 1 ,977 
3,600 (2,686,08 I )  

( 1 ,362,20 1 )  1 86,67 1 
6,696 (85,407) 

( 1 87, 1 80) (76,038) 
(849,5 1 6) 241 ,9 1 2  

(2,026,554) 478,730 

38, 1 35 1 9,670 
2,496, 1 63 (3,526,345) 

(99,557) 
3 1 ,498 (604,705) 

(2,664,9 1 5) 4,390,8 1 4  

(6,695,403) (75 1 ,896) 

( 1 9, 1 68) (4,268) 

(6,7 1 4,57 1 )  (756, 164) 

4,30 1 ,339 1 ,582,367 

1 ,360,000 
(7,609,428) (8,820,479) 

( 1 ,948,089) (7,238, 1 12) 

( 1 1 ,327,575) (3,603,462) 

1 7,666,075 2 1 ,269,537 

6,338,500 $ 1 7,666,075 

463,882 $ 806,929 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Note 1 :  Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. is the sole corporate member of the following affiliates, col lectively · 
referred to as the Organization: 

KVC Behavioral HealthCare, Inc. 

KVC Behavioral HealthCare, Inc. is a Kansas not-for-profit organization headquartered in 
Olathe, Kansas. It provides an integrated array of programs for emotionally and behaviorally 
impaired, abused, neglected, runaway and homeless youth, ages birth to twenty-one, and their 
families. 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare West Virginia, Inc. 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare West Virginia, Inc. is a West Virginia not-for-profit organization 
headquartered in Charleston, West Virginia, whose mission and principal activities are to 
provide an integrated array of programs for emotionally and behaviorally impaired, abused, 
neglected, runaway and homeless youth, ages birth to twenty-one, and their famil ies. 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare Kentucky, Inc. 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare Kentucky, Inc. is a Kentucky not-for-profit organization 
headquartered in Lexington, Kentucky, whose mission and principal activities are to provide 
mental health, educational and case management services to children with mental health needs 
who are either placed in out-of-home care, hospitalized or who are facing imminent removal 
from their biological home in the state of Kentucky. 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare Nebraska, Inc. 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare Nebraska, Inc. is a Nebraska not-for-profit organization 
headquartered in Omaha, Nebraska, whose mission and principal activities are to provide 
service coordination, foster care, family preservation and supportive mental health services to 
the chi ldren and fami lies of Nebraska. 

KVC Hospitals, Inc. 

KVC Hospitals, Inc. is a Kansas not-for-profit organization headquartered in Olathe, Kansas, 
whose mission and principal activities are to provide psychiatric care to children and 
adolescents out of faci lities in Kansas City, Kansas, Wichita, Kansas and Hays, Kansas. 

KVC Foundation, Inc. 

KVC Foundation, Inc. is a Kansas not-for-profit organization in Olathe, Kansas. The 
Foundation was created to establish an endowment and provide fundraising activities to support 
the programs of KVC Health Systems, Inc. and its affiliates. 

9 



KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare Missouri, Inc. 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare Missouri, Inc. (previously The Niles Home for Children, Inc.) is a 
Missouri not-for-profit organization headquartered in Kansas City, Missouri, whose mission 
and principal activities are to provide mental health and education services to high-risk children 
and families, empowering them to become confident and contributing citizens. K VC 
Behavioral Healthcare Missouri, Inc. operates The Niles Home for Children. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of KVC Health Systems, 
Inc. and its affiliates. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated 
in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles general ly 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses and other changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Organization considers all l iquid investments with original maturities of three months or less 
to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2022 and 202 1 ,  cash equivalents consisted primarily of money 
market accounts with banks. The Organization held approximately $223,000 and $2,352,000 of 
cash in payroll accounts as of June 30, 2022 and 202 1 , respectively, to fund payrol l  obligations 
scheduled to occur within two days following year end. 

At June 30, 2022, the Organization's cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by 
approximately $243,000. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable includes accounts receivable under Topic 606 (accounts receivable under 
Topic 606) and ASU 20 1 8-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope qnd the 
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (accounts receivable 
under Topic 958). 

Accounts receivable under Topic 606 reflects the outstanding amount of consideration to which the 
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due 
from patients, third-party payers (including health insurers and government programs) and others. 
As a service to the patient, the Organization bills third-party payers directly and bil ls the patient 
when the patient's responsibil ity for co-pays, coinsurance and deductibles is determined. Accounts 
receivable under Topic 606 are due in full when billed. 

10 



KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Accounts receivable under Topic 958 are stated at the net real izable value, which is the amount 
management expects to collect from outstanding balances. The Organization provides an 
allowance for doubtful accounts, which is based upon a review of outstanding receivables, 
historical collection information and existing economic conditions. Accounts receivable under 
Topic 958 are ordinarily due 30 days after the issuance of the invoice. Accounts past due more 
than 90 days are considered delinquent. Delinquent receivables are written off based on individual 
credit evaluation and specific circumstances of the customer. 

Bad debt expense was not significant for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1 .  

The composition of accounts receivable and unbil led receivables is as follows: 

Accounts receivable under Topic 606 
Accounts receivable under Topic 958 

Total accounts receivable 

Unbi lled receivables under Topic 606 

Total accounts receivable and 
unbilled receivables 

Contract Assets - Unbilled Receivables 

2022 

$ 5,8 1 7,0 1 7  
1 0,500,243 

1 6,3 1 7,260 

2,682,48 1 

$ 1 8,999,74 1 

2021 

$ 4, 1 09,604 
1 0,472,8 1 7  

14,582,42 1 

2,686,08 1 

$ I 7,268,502 

Amounts related to health care services provided to patients which have not been bil led and that do 
not meet the conditions of an unconditional right to payment at the end of the reporting period are 
contract assets. Contract assets consist primarily of health care services provided to patients who 
are sti l l  receiving inpatient care at the end of the year. Contract assets are included in unbilled 
receivables at June 30, 20�2 and 202 1 .  

Investments 

Investments in equity securities having a readily determinable fair value are carried at fair value. 
Investment return includes interest income on investments carried at fair value and is reflected in 
the consolidated statements of activities. Investment return that is initially restricted by donor 
stipulation and for which the restriction wi l l  be satisfied in the same year is included in net assets 
without donor restrictions. 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Notes to Conso lidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Net Investment Return 

Investment return includes dividend, interest and other investment income; real ized and unrealized 
gains and losses on investments carried at fair value; and realized gains and losses on other 
investments, less external and direct internal investment expenses. Gains and losses on the sale of 
securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification 
method. 

I nvestment return that is initially restricted by donor stipulation and for which the restriction will 
be satisfied in the same year is included in net assets without donor restrictions. Other investment 
return is reflected in the statements of activities with or without donor restrictions based upon the 
existence and nature of any donor or legally imposed restrictions. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment acquisitions over $3 ,000 are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is charged to expense using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 
each asset. Assets under capital lease obligations and leasehold improvements are depreciated over 
the shorter of the lease term or their respective estimated useful lives. 

The estimated useful lives for each major depreciable classification of property and equipment are 
as follows: 

Buildings and leasehold improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Computer equipment and vehicles 

Long-lived Asset Impairment 

5-40 years 
5- I O  years 

5 years 

The Organization evaluates the recoverabi l ity of the carrying value of long-lived assets whenever 
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If a long-lived asset 
is tested for recoverability and the undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result 
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset, the 
asset cost is adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the 
carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. No asset impairment was recognized 
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1 .  

Inpatient Services Revenue 

Inpatient services revenue is recognized as the Organization satisfies performance obligations 
under its contract with patients. Inpatient services revenue is reported at the estimated transaction 
price or amount that reflects the consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitled in 
exchange for providing patient care. The Organization determines the transaction price based on 
standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to 
third-party payers, discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Organization's 
pol icies and implicit price concessions provided to uninsured patients. 
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June 30, 2022 and 2021 

The Organization detennines its estimates of explicit price concessions which represent 
adjustments and discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount policies and historical 
experience by payer groups. The Organization detennines its estimate of implicit price 
concessions based on its historical col lection experience by classes of patients. The estimated 
amounts also include variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement 
of audits, reviews and investigations by third-party payers. 

Charity Care 

The Organization provides care without charge or at amounts less than its established rates to 
patients meeting certain criteria under its charity care policy. Because the Organization does not 
pursue col lection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are not reported 
as patient service revenue. 

Net Assets 

Net assets, revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or 
grantor-imposed restrictions. Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use in general 
operations and not subject to donor restrictions. Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to 
donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets without donor restrictions are those whose use by the 
Organization has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. 

Contributions and Grants 

Contributions are provided to the Organization either with or without restrictions placed on the gift 
by the donor. Revenues and net assets are separately reported to reflect the nature of those gifts -
with or without donor restrictions. The value recorded for each contribution is recognized as 
follows: 

Nature of the Gift 
Conditional gifts, with or without restrictions 

Gifts that depend on the Organization 
overcoming a donor-imposed barrier to 
be entitled to the funds 

Unconditional gifts, with or without restrictions 
Received at date of gift - cash and 
other assets 

Received at date of gift -property, 
equipment and long-lived assets 

Expected to be collected within one 
year 

Value Recognized 

Not recognized until the gift becomes 
unconditional, i. e. , the donor-imposed barrier 
is met 

Fair value 

Estimated fair value 

Net realizable value 
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June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Col lected in future years Initially reported at fair value determined 
using the discounted present value of 
estimated future cash flows technique 

In addition to the amount initially recognized, revenue for unconditional gifts to be col lected in 
future years is also recognized each year as the present-value discount is amortized using the level­
yield method. 

When a donor stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets 
with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in  the 
consolidated statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Absent explicit donor 
stipulations for the period of time that long-lived assets must be held, expirations of restrictions for 
gifts of land, buildings, equipment and other long-lived assets are reported when those assets are 
placed in service. 

Gifts and investment income having donor stipulations which are satisfied in the period the gift is 
received are recorded as revenue and net assets without donor restrictions. 

Conditional contributions having donor stipulations which are satisfied in the period the gift is 
received are recorded as revenue and net assets without donor restrictions. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. I f  the implied fair value of goodwill is lower than its 
carrying amount, a goodwill impairment is indicated and goodwill is written down to its implied 
fair value. Subsequent increases in goodwill value are not recognized in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Deferred Revenue 

Revenue from contracts, grants and other miscellaneous fees is deferred and recognized over the 
periods in which the services are performed. 

Professional Liability Coverage and Claims 

The Organization purchases professional l iabi lity insurance under a claims-made pol icy on a fixed 
premium basis. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
an organization to accrue the expense of its share of professional liabil ity claim costs, if any, for 
any reported and unreported incidents of potential improper professional service occurring during 
the year by estimating the probable ultimate costs of the incidents. 

Based upon the Organization's claims experience, an accrual had been made for the Organization's 
estimated professional l iabil ity costs, including costs associated with l itigating or settl ing claims, 
under its professional liabil ity policy, amounting to $3, 1 97,835 and $2,383,323 as of June 30, 2022 
and 202 1 ,  respectively. It is reasonably possible that this estimate could change material ly in the 
near term. 
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June 30, 2022 and 2021 

The Organization recorded in accounts receivable on the consolidated statements of financial 
position $2,900,674 and $2,383,323 as of June 30, 2022 and 202 1 ,  respectively, of professional 
l iability reserve insurance coverage receivables. 

Government Grants 

Support funded by grants is recognized as the Organization performs the contracted service or 
incurs outlays eligible for reimbursement under the grant agreements. Grant activities and outlays 
are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency and, as a result of such audit, 
adjustments could be required. 

Income Taxes 

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 50 1 of the Internal Revenue Code 
and a simi lar provision of state law. However, the Organization is subject to federal income tax on 
any unrelated business taxable income. The Organization files tax returns in the U.S. federal 
jurisdiction. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of supporting the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Certain costs have been allocated 
among the client care, administrative and general and fundraising categories based on time 
expended, usage and other methods. 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 

The consolidated statements of activities include excess of revenues over expenses. Changes in net 
assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from excess of revenues over expenses, 
consistent with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets 
acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purpose of 
acquiring such assets). 

Note 2: Inpatient Services Revenue 

Inpatient services revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due 
from patients, third-party payers (including health insurers and government programs) and others 
and includes variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, 
reviews and investigations. Generally, the Organization bills the patients and third-party payers 
several days after the services are performed or the patient is discharged from the facility. Revenue 
is recognized as performance obl igations are satisfied. 
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June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Performance Obligations 

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the 
Organization. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on 
actual charges incurred in relation to total expected or actual charges. The Organization believes 
that this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the 
performance obligation based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, 
performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients in the hospital receiving inpatient 
acute care services or patients receiving emergent care services. The Organization measures the 
performance obligation from inpatient admission, or the commencement of an emergent service, to 
the point when it is no longer required to provide services to that patient, which is generally at the 
time of discharge or completion of the emergent services. 

Transaction Price 

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and 
services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payers, discounts 
provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Organization's contractual adjustments and 
discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount policies and historical experience. The 
Organization determines its estimate of impl icit price concessions based on its historical collection 
experience with this class of patients. 

Financing Component 

The Organization has elected the practical expedient allowed under F ASB ASC 606- 1 0-32- 1 8  and 
does not adjust the promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payers for the 
effects of a significant financing component due to the Organization's expectation that the period 
between the time the service is provided to a patient and the time the patient or a third-party payer 
pays for that service will be one year or less. 

However, the Organization does, in certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients 
that allow payments in excess of one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deemed 
to be significant to the contract. 

Contract Costs 

The Organization has applied the practical expedient provided by F ASB ASC 340-40-25-4 and al l 
incremental customer contract acquisition costs are expensed as they are incurred, as the 
amortization period of the asset that the Organization otherwise would have recognized is one year 
or less in duration. 

Third-Party Payers 

Agreements with third-party payers typically provide for payments at amounts less than established 
charges. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows: 
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Medicaid. The Organization is reimbursed on a prospective payment methodology for services 
rendered to beneficiaries. 

Other. Payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance 
organizations and preferred provider organizations provide for payment using prospectively 
determined rates per discharge, discounts from establ ished charges and prospectively 
determined daily rates. 

Laws and regulations concerning government programs, including Medicaid, are complex and 
subject to varying interpretation. As a result of investigations by governmental agencies, various 
health care organizations have received requests for information and notices regarding alleged 
noncompliance with those laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have resulted in 
organizations entering into significant settlement agreements. Compl iance with such laws and 
regulations may also be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as 
significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties and potential exclusion from the related 
programs. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities wil l  not challenge the 
Organization's compliance with these laws and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the 
impact (if any) such claims or penalties would have upon the Organization. In addition, the 
contracts that the Organization has with commercial payers also provide for retroactive audit and 
review of claims. 

Settlements with third-party payers for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews or 
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the 
estimated transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are estimated based on the 
terms of the payment agreement with the payer, correspondence from the payer and the 
Organization's historical settlement activity, including an assessment to ensure that it is probable 
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the 
uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated 
settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known based on newly available 
information or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews and 
investigations. 

Refund Liabilities 

From time to time the Organization will receive overpayments of patient balances from third-party 
payers or patients resulting in amounts owed back to either the patients or third-party payers. At 
June 30, 2022 and 202 1 ,  $430,805 and $ 1 7 1 ,353 are included in accounts payable on the 
consolidated statements of financial position, respectively. 

Patient and Uninsured Payers 

Consistent with the Organizati"on's mission, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to 
pay. Therefore, the Organization has determined it has provided implicit price concessions to 
uninsured patients and patients with other uninsured balances, such as copays and deductibles. The 
implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference 
between amounts billed to patients and the amounts the Organization expects to collect based on its 
collection history with those patients. 
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Patients who meet the Organization's criteria for charity care are provided care without charge or at 
amounts less than established rates. Such amounts determined to qualify as charity care are not 
reported as revenue. 

Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payers are responsible for related deductibles 
and coinsurance, which vary in amount. The Organization also provides services to uninsured 
patients and offers those uninsured patients a discount, either by policy or law, from standard 
charges. The Organization estimates the transaction price for patients with deductibles and 
coinsurance and from those who are uninsured based on historical experience and current market 
conditions. The initial estimate of the transaction price is determined by reducing the standard 
charge by any contractual adjustments, discounts and implicit price concessions based on historical 
collection experience. Subsequent changes to the estimate of the transaction price are general ly 
recorded as adjustments to patient service revenue in the period of the change. Subsequent changes 
that are determined to be the result of an adverse change in the patient's abil ity to pay are recorded 
as bad debt expense. 

Revenue Composition 

The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and 
cash flows are affected by the following factors: 

• Payers (for example, Medicaid, other insurance, patient) have different reimbursement 
and payment methodologies 

• Length of the patient's service or episode of care 

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1 ,  the Organization recognized inpatient services 
revenue of$35,087,798 and $34,099,872, respectively, all of which were from services that 
transfer to the patient over time. 

The composition of inpatient services revenue by primary payer for the years ended June 30, 2022 
and 202 1 ,  were approximately: 

2022 2021 

Medicaid $ 22, 1 09,2 1 4  $ 23,03 1 ,2 1 8  
Blue Cross Blue Shield 4,080,893 4,463,437 
Other third-party payers 8,705,9 1 0  6,347,479 
Self-pay 1 9 1 ,78 1 257,739 

Total $ 35,087,798 $ 34,099,873 
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Note 3: Revenue Concentrations - KVC Behavioral HealthCare, Inc. 

Effective October l ,  20 1 9, the Kansas Department for Children and Families (DCF) restructured 
the Organization's contracts into grants for Foster Care Reintegration Services. DCF changed from 
contracts for each of their four regions to grants for each of the eight catchment areas within the 
four regions. KVC Kansas was awarded Case Management grants for two of the eight 
Reintegration catchment areas, compared to their previous contracts for two of the four regions. 

Revenues for the Foster Care Reintegration Services from DCF amounted to $3 1 ,058,899 and 
$32,995,030, which represents 2 1  percent and 23 percent of the Organization's revenues, gains and 
support without donor restrictions for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1 ,  respectively. 
Accounts receivable related to the Foster Care Reintegration Services grants amounted to 
$3,544,0 I O  and $3,975,627 at June 30, 2022 and 202 1 ,  respectively. 

Effective October I ,  20 1 9, the Organization was awarded a separate Child Placing Agency 
Services grant from DCF for the period October 1 ,  20 1 9  through June 30, 2023, with two 
additional two-year renewal options. Revenues from the Child Placing Agency Services grant 
amounted to $25,824,366 and $27, 1 1 7,492, which represents 1 8  percent and 1 9  percent of the 
Organization's revenues, gains and support without donor restrictions for the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 202 1 ,  respectively. 

Note 4: Contributions Receivable 

Contributions receivable consisted of the following at a discount rate of 5 .00 percent: 

2022 

Due within one year $ 1 ,842, 149 
Due in one to five years 1 1 1 ,000 

1 ,953, 149 
Less 

Unamortized discount (6,604} 

$ 1 ,946,545 

$ 

2021 

244,200 
242,600 
486,800 

(1 2,2 1 0} 

$ 474,590 

The Organization has received the following conditional promises to give at June 30, 2022 and 202 1 
that are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. 

Conditional grants and contributions upon 
providing eligible services 

2022 

$ 68,959,55 1 

2021 

$ 74, 1 35, 1 36 
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Note 5: Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment at June 30 consists of: 

Land and land improvements 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Works of art 
Computer equipment 
Vehicles 
Construction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Note 6: Long-term Debt 

Notes payable, bank (A) 
Notes payable, bank (8) 
Notes payable, bank (C) 
Notes payable, bank (D) 
Notes payable, bank (E) 

Less current maturities 

2022 

$ 1,409,201 
42,536,339 
6,402,434 

109,398 
6,287,065 

301,560 
3,697,743 

60,743,740 
24,839,115 

$ 35,904,625 

2022 

$ 

925,424 
6,724,809 

7,650,233 
1,761,129 

$ 5,889,104 

2021 

$ 1,409,201 
39,582,606 
6,255,933 

109,398 
6,283,973 

251,681 
155,546 

54,048,338 
22,973,523 

$ 31,074,815 

2021 

$ 4,905,216 
781,907 

7,198,065 
6,984,100 

19,869,288 
7,528,881 

$ 12,340,407 

(A) Initially due February 25, 2021; payable $39,482 monthly and one irregular last payment, 
including interest at 5.00 percent; collateralized by real estate. This was extended in 2021, 
with a new maturity date of May 1, 2026; payable $39,482 monthly and one irregular last 
payment, including interest at 4.00 percent; collateralized by real estate. This loan was 
paid off in 2022. 

(B) Due August 15, 2022; payable $5,873 monthly and one irregular last payment, including 
interest at 4. 90 percent; collateralized by real estate. This loan was paid off in 2022. 

(C) Due October 22, 2026; payable $76,002 monthly ($8, I 02 scheduled payment plus an 
elected $67,900 extra payment) and one irregular last payment, including interest at 
3. 75 percent; collateralized by real estate. 
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(D) Due March 30, 2025; payable $49,795 monthly and one irregular last payment, including 
interest at 5 . 1 4  percent; collateralized by real estate. 

(E) Due April 1 8, 2022; this balance consists of notes payable as part of the Paycheck 
Protection Program (PPP), set up by the United States Smal l Business Administration 
(SBA) as al located in the CARES Act; payable in monthly amounts ranging from $26,535 
to $ 1 79, 1 52, including interest at 1 .00 percent. 

During 2022, the Organization paid back a portion of one loan to the SBA, which totaled 
$ 1 , 1 03,326. Additionally, $5,969,627 was forgiven, which included interest. 

KVC Hospitals, Inc. unconditionally guarantees the indebtedness ofKVC Foundation, Inc. for 
outstanding notes payable (A), (B), (C) and (D) above. 

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt and payments at June 30, 2022 are: 

2023 
2024 
2025 

$ 1 ,76 1 , 1 29 
1 ,074,588 
4,8 1 4,5 1 6  

$ 7,650,233 
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Note 7 :  Liquidity and Availabi lity 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use, within one year of June 30, 2022 and 2021, comprise the following: 

Financial assets at year end 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Unbilled receivables 
Contributions receivable 
Grants receivable 

Total financial assets 

Less amounts with donor-imposed restrictions 
Financial assets subject to expenditure for 

specified purpose 
Net financial assets after donor-imposed restrictions 

Less amounts due after one year 
Contributions receivable 

$ 

2022 

6,338,500 
1 02,061 

16,317,260 
2,682,481 
1 ,946,545 
3,663,067 

3 1 ,049,9 1 4  

(2,399,72 1 )  
28,650,193 

(104,396) 

2021 

$ 17,666,075 
97,869 

14,582,421 
2,686,08 1 

474,590 
2,300,866 

37,807,902 

(l ,0 1 1 , 1 67) 
36,796,735 

(230,390) 

Financial assets available to meet cash needs 
for general expenditures within one year $ 28,545,797 $ 36,566,345 

As part of the Organization' s l iquidity management plan, management reviews cash and 
investment balances regularly and compares those to monthly operational requirements. 
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Note 8: Investments and Investment Return 

Investments include: 

Mutual funds 
Corporate stocks 
Exchange-traded funds 

2022 

$ 537,069 
67,006 
1 9,405 

$ 623,480 

2021 

$ 416,329 
64,952 
24,737 

$ 506,018 

Investments are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position as follows: 

2022 2021 

Investments $ 102,06 1 $ 97,869 
Funds held for deferred compensation 521,419 408,149 

$ 623,480 $ 506,018 

Total investment return comprised of the following: 

2022 2021 

Interest and dividend income $ 24,765 $ 51,389 
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments (14,976) 29,978 

$ 9,789 $ 81,367 
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Note 9: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabil ities 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a l iabi l ity in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements 
must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The 
hierarchy comprises three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or l iabilities 

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level I prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets 
or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are 
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the 
ful l term of the assets or liabilities 

Level 3 Unobservable inputs supported by l ittle or no market activity and are significant to 
the fair value of the assets or l iabil ities 

Recurring Measurements 

The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of financial position measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the 
level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fal l at June 30, 2022 and 
202 1 : 

Mutual funds 
Corporate stocks 
Exchange-traded funds 

Fair Value 

$ 537,069 
67,006 
1 9,405 

$ 623,480 

June 30, 2022 
Fair Value Measurements Using 

Quoted 
Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1 )  

$ 537,069 
67,006 
1 9,405 

$ 623,480 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

$ 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ 

$ 
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June 30, 2021 
Fair Value Measurements Using 

Mutual funds 
Corporate stocks 
Exchange-traded funds 

Note 1 0: Retirement Plans 

Defined Contribution Plan 

Fair Value 

$ 4 1 6,329 
64,952 
24,737 

$ 506,0 1 8  

Quoted 
Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1 )  

$ 416,329 
64,952 
24,737 

$ 506,018 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

$ 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ 

$ 

The Organization has a defined contribution plan (the Plan) covering all full-time employees who 
are at least 2 1  years of age. Participants are immediately vested in their voluntary contributions, 
while vesting in the Organization' s  contributions is based on years of continuous service, with a 
participant becoming fully vested after one year of continuous service. Each year, the board of 
directors determines the amount of the matching contribution to the Plan. Total expenses for the 
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were approximately $ 1 ,274,000 and $1,586,000, respectively. 

Defined Benefit Plan 

KVC Behavioral Healthcare Missouri, Inc. (KVC Missouri) has a noncontributory defined benefit 
pension plan (the Plan) covering all full-time employees of KVC Missouri (formerly The Niles 
Home for Children, Inc.) with one year or more of continuous service prior to the Plan being frozen 
effective February 28, 2005. The Organization's funding policy is to make the minimum annual 
contribution that is required by applicable regulations, plus such amounts as the Organization may 
determine to be appropriate from time to time. The Plan has a plan year which ends Qn 
December 31. The Organization expects to contribute $87,000 to the Plan in the plan year ending 
December 3 1 ,  2022. 
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The Organization uses a December 31 measurement date for the Plan. Information about the 
Plan's funded status follows: 

December 31 , December 31 , 
2022 2021 

Benefit obligation $ (1,693,926) $ (1,726,120) 
Fair value of plan assets 2,063,427 1,799,588 

Funded status $ 369,501 $ 73,468 

The benefit obligation is calculated based on a discount rate of 2.6 percent and 2.3 percent for the 
periods ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The expected return on plan assets of 
8.0 percent for both periods ended December 3 1, 2021 and 2020 was calculated using the "building 
block" approach described by the Actuarial Standards Board in Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 
27 - Selection Economic Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations. Plan assets consist of 
equity and fixed income investments. 

Net benefit asset of $369,501 and $73,468 is recorded in the consolidated statements of financial 
position within prepaid expenses and other at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, based on 
management ' s opinion that there has not been a material change to the net benefit asset for the 
periods December 31, 2021 to June 30, 2022 or December 31, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 

Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Organization sponsors a Section 457(b) deferred compensation plan, effective July l ,  2019, for 
executive staff. The Plan has a plan year which ends on December 31. Total payments into the 
plan for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $214,000 and $177,000, respectively. 

Note 1 1 :  Operating Leases 

Noncancellable operating leases for office space expire in various years through 2027. These 
leases generally contain renewal options for periods ranging from one to five years and require the 
Organization to pay all executory costs (property taxes, maintenance and insurance). Total rental 
expense for property leases for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $1,916,076 and 
$2,245,136, respectively. 

Noncancellable operating leases for equipment and vehicles expire in various years through 2025. 
Total rental expense for equipment and vehicles leases for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 
was $828,533 and $928,313, respectively. 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30� 2022 and 2021 

Future minimum lease payments at June 30, 2022 were: 

Equipment 
and 

Vehicles 

2023 $ 1 06,067 
2024 7,638 
2025 786 
2026 
2027 

$ 1 1 4,49 1 

Note 1 2: Significant Estimates and Concentrations 

Property 

$ 1 ,980,383 
1 ,4 1 4,5 1 5  

308,4 1 4  
32,796 
27,330 

$ 3,763,438 

Total 

$ 2,086,450 
1 ,422, 1 53 

309,200 
32,796 
27,330 

$ 3,877,929 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure of 
certain significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations. Those 
matters include the following: 

Variable Consideration 

Estimates of variable consideration (implicit and explicit price concessions) in determining the 
transaction price for inpatient services revenue are described in Notes J and 2. 

Litigation 

The Organization is subject to claims and lawsuits that arose primarily in the ordinary course of its 
activities. It is the opinion of management that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims 
and lawsuits wil l not have a material adverse effect on the financial position, change in net assets 
and cash flows of the Organization. Events could occur that would change this estimate materially 
in the near term. 

Note 1 3: COVID-1 9 Pandemic & CARES Act Funding 

The Organization's pandemic response plan is multi-faceted and continues to evolve as the effects 
of the pandemic continues to change as a result of individuals becoming vaccinated and new 
variants of the virus arise. The Organization has taken precautionary steps to enhance its 
operational and financial flexibil ity and react to the risks the COVID- 1 9  pandemic continues to 
present to its business. 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

The extent of the COVI D- 1 9  pandemic's adverse effect on the Organization's operating results and 
financial condition has been and will continue to be driven by many factors, most of which are 
beyond the Organization's control and ability to forecast. Such factors include, but are not limited 
to, increases in the number of uninsured and underinsured patients as a result of higher sustained 
rates of unemployment, incremental expenses required for supplies and personal protective 
equipment, and changes in professional and general liabil ity exposure. 

Because of these and other uncertainties, the Organization cannot estimate the length or severity of 
the effect of the pandemic on the Organization's business. Decreases in cash flows and results of 
operations may have an effect on the inputs and assumptions used in significant accounting 
estimates, including estimated bad debts and contractual adjustments related to uninsured and other 
patient accounts. 

Provider Relief Fund 

During the year ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1 ,  the Organization received approximately $629,000 
and $ 1 ,  1 56,000 in general and targeted Provider Relief Fund distributions, both as provided for 
under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief. and Economic Security ("CARES") Act (collectively referred to 
as the Provider Relief Fund). These distributions from the Provider Relief Fund (PRF) are not 
subject to repayment, provided the Organization is able to attest to and comply with the terms and 
conditions of the funding, including demonstrating that the distributions received have been used 
for qualifying expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID- 1 9, as defined by the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). 

The Organization is accounting for such payments as conditional contributions in accordance with 
ASC Topic 958-605 - Revenue Recognition. Payments are recognized as contribution revenue 
once the applicable terms and conditions required to retain the funds have been met. Based on an 
analysis of the compliance and reporting requirements of the PRF and the effect of the pandemic 
on the Organization's operating results through June 30, 2022 and 202 1 ,  the Organization 
recognized $629,297 and $ I ,  1 55,675 , respectively, related to the PRF, and these payments are 
recorded as miscel laneous operating revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
activities. 

Clarifying guidance on the terms and conditions has been periodically updated by HHS. As a 
result, the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements compared to the 
Organization's Provider Relief Fund reporting could differ. This difference cannot be currently 
estimated but could be material . 

The Organization wil l  continue to monitor compliance with the terms and conditions of the 
Provider Rel ief Fund and the impact of the pandemic on the Organization's revenues and expenses. 
The terms and conditions governing the Provider Relief Funds are complex and subject to 
interpretation and change. If the Organization is unable to attest to or comply with current or 
future terms and conditions, its ability to retain some or all of the distributions received may be 
impacted. 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Note 1 4: Future Change in Accounting Principle 

Accounting for Leases 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board amended its standard related to the accounting for 
leases. Under the new standard, lessees will now be required to recognize substantially all leases 
on the balance sheet as both a right-of-use asset and a liabil ity. The standard has two types of 
leases for income statement recognition purposes: operating leases and finance leases. Operating 
leases will result in the recognition of a single lease expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term similar to the treatment for operating leases under existing standards. Finance leases will 
result in an accelerated expense similar to the accounting for capital leases under existing 
standards. The determination of lease classification as operating or finance will be done in a 
manner similar to existing standards. The new standard also contains amended guidance regarding 
the identification of embedded leases in service contracts and the identification of lease and 
nonlease components in an arrangement. The new standard is effective for annual periods 
beginning after December 1 5, 202 1 ,  and any interim periods within annual reporting periods that 
begin after December 1 5, 2022. The Organization is evaluating the impact the standard will have 
on the consolidated financial statements; however, the standard is expected to have a material 
impact on the consolidated financial statements due to the recognition of additional assets and 
liabi lities for operating leases. 

Note 1 5: Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 1 5, 2022, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were avai lable to be issued. 
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KVC 
Health 

S�stems, Inc. 
Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalcnls $ 2,529,4 14  
lnvesbncnts 102,061 
Accounts receivable 2,900,958 
Unbilled receivables 
Due tolli'om affiliate 1 ,450,328 
Contributions receivable 
Grants receivable 6,750 
Prepaid expi:nses and other 859,647 

Total current assets 7,849, 158 

Property and Equipment, Net 4 10, 124 

Contributions Receivable 

Other Assets 
Goodwill 
Funds held for deferred 

compensation 52 1 .4 19 
Deposits and other assets 

52 1 ,4 19 

Total assets s 8,780,70 1 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position 

June 30, 2022 

KVC 
Behavioral KVC KVC 

KVC Healthcare Behavioral Behavioral 
Behavioral West Healthcare Healthcare KVC 

HealthCare, Inc. Vl!Jllnla, Inc. Kentuck�, Inc. Nebraska, Inc. Hoseltals, Inc. 

s 95,342 $ 433, 1 74 $ 1 53,283 $ 382, 1 27 s 299,57S 

4,220,719  859,843 306,977 1 ,2 18,904 5,8 1 7,0 17  
2,682,48 1 

(33 1 ,569) ( 1 2 1 ,505) (23 1 ,65 1 )  (83,42 1 )  (506,284) 

262,199 3,267,76 1 73,857 
76,909 52,030 67,988 36,256 125,720 

4,323,600 1.223,S42 3,564,358 11627,723 8,4 18,509 

746,755 220,263 14. 1 56 159, 1 87 4,686, 167 

545,000 

36,063 3,325 24,265 20,000 

36,063 3,325 569,265 20,000 

$ 5,106,4 18 $ 1 ,447, 130 $ 4, 147,779 $ 1 ,786,9 10 s 13, 124,676 

KVC 
Behavioral 

KVC Healthcare 
Foundation, Inc. Missouri, Inc. Ellmlnatlons Consolidated 

s 1 ,569,646 s 875,939 $ 6,338,500 
102,061 

6,000 986,842 1 6,3 17,260 
2,682,481 

(84,844) (91,054) 
1,842, 149 1,842,149 

52,500 3,663,067 
27,279 8,035 1 ,253

1
864 

3,360,230 1
1
832,262 32, 1 99,382 

25,706,892 3,96 1,08 1 35,904,625 

l04,396 l04,396 

545,000 

52 1 ,4 19 
5,000 369,501 458, 154 

S,000 369,501 1,524,573 

$ 29,176,5 18 s 6, 162,844 $ $ 69,732,976 

------ ------- ------ ------- ------ ------- -------- ---- ---



<..) ..... 

Llablitles and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries 
Accrued compensated absences 
Other accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term Debt 

Deferred CompenHtion Obligation 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

KVC 
Health 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position (Continued) 

June 30, 2022 

KVC 
Behavioral KVC KVC 

KVC Healthcare Behavioral Behavioral 
Behavioral West Healthcare Healthcare KVC KVC 

Slstems, Inc. HealthCare, Inc. Vl�lnla, Inc. Kentuckl, Inc. Nebraska, Inc. HOS(!ltals, Inc. Foundatlon1 Inc. 

s - s - s - s - s - s - s 1 ,76 1 , 1 29 
(8,590) 840,0 19 (58, 140) ( 1 7,0 I S) 27 1 ,960 1 89,806 

294,979 920,640 203,730 463,260 I04,240 686,922 
2 1 1 , 143 838,3 1 5  1 85,75 1 353,076 122,735 65 1 ,452 1 1 ,374 

3 , 164,395 379,263 45 1 ,948 224,027 189, 179 1 ,704,672 35, 1 1 3  
32,922 8 1 ,0 1 1  102,627 45,000 

3,66 1 ,927 3,0 1 1 , 1 59 864,300 1,023,348 790,74 1 3,232,852 1,852,6 16 

5,889,104 

52 1 ,4 1 9  

4, 183,346 3.0 1 1 , 1 59 864,300 1 ,023,348 790,74 1 3,232,852 7,741 ,720 

4,591,355 2,095,259 582,830 3 , 124,43 1 996,169 9,891,824 19,035,077 
2,399,72 1 

4,591,355 2,095,259 582,830 3 , 1 24,43 1 996, 169 9,891,824 2 1,434,798 

s 8,780,701 s 5, 106,4 18  s 1 ,447, 1 30 s 4, 147,779 s 1 ,786,9 10 s 13 , 124,676 s 29,176,5 18  

KVC 

Behavioral 
Healthcare 

Missouri, Inc. Eliminations Consolidated 

$ s 1 ,76 1 , 1 29 
(2,802) 1 ,2 1 5,238 

1 38,475 2,8 12,246 
103,880 2,477,726 
1 2 1 , 1 2 1  6,269,7 1 8  
62,740 324,300 

423,4 14  1 4,860,357 

5,889, 104 

52 1 ,4 1 9  

423,4 14  2 1,270,880 

5,739,430 46,062,375 
2,399,72 1 

5,739,430 48,462,096 

s 6, 162,844 s s 69,732,976 



KVC 
Health 

sistems, Inc. 
Revenues, Gains and Other Support 

Wilhout Donor Re11rictions 
Reintegration and adoption services 
Child placing services 
lnpalicnt services 
Family preservation, in•home 

and residential services 
Contributions and granlS 72,984 
Investment income (loss) ( 10,302) 
Miscellaneous 586,248 
Management fee 1 3,467,493 
lnlercompany services 162,744 
lntercompany rent 

Total revenues, gains and 
other supporl without donor 
restncuons 14,279,167 

Operating Expenses 
Client care 
Administrative and general 14,257,818 
Fumlra1sing 

Total operalmg �-xpcnses 14,257,818 

Operating Income (Lon) 2 1 ,349 

Other Income (Expense) 
Debi forgiveness mcomc 
lntcrcompany transfers 8 1 ,S79 

Exce11 (Delicienc:y) of Revenues Over 
Ellpcn1es 102,928 

Con1ribu1ions and granls received for 
property acqum11ons 

Net assets released from rcstnct1ons for 
property acquisiuons 

Change in Net Assets Without Donor 
Ratriction1 1 02,928 

Nel A11el1 With Donor Reslricliun1 
Contributions received for property 

11cquisillons 
Net assets released from restncuons for 

<..) 
properly acquis111ons 

I\) 
Chanae In Net Assell 102,928 

Net A11ets, Beginnina of Vear 4,494.427 

Net Assets, End of Vear s 4,S97,3SS 

KVC 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidating Schedule of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

KVC 
Behavioral KVC KVC 
Healthcare Behavioral Behavioral 

Behavioral west Healthcare Healthcare KVC 
HealthCare, Inc. Vlr9lnla, Inc. Kentucki, Inc, Nebraska, Inc. Hosettals1 Inc. 

3 1 , 1 44,462 s Sl.964 s 
25,738,803 8, 1 14,389 207,8 1 5  5,861,486 

35,087,798 

607,349 2,698,967 1 2.045,044 S,822,243 
1 ,788,849 279,338 2,044,453 402,625 220.8 1 5  

2,287 1,662 1 ,819 1 ,043 1 1 ,956 
640.759 1 1 4. 1 27 1 .722.562 4. 143 3,797,214 

(84,648) (26,498) ( 165,243) (26,498) ( 1 9,96 1 )  

59,837,861 1 1 , 1 8 1 ,98S IS ,8S6,4S0 1 2, 1 19.006 39,097,822 

S4,SS6,860 1 0,366,081 14,807,73 1  1 1 ,263,285 35,576,360 
5,499,729 987,754 1 .675,900 808.302 4,381 ,846 

60,056,589 1 1 ,353,835 1 6,483,63 1 1 2,071,587 39,958,206 

(21 8,728) ( 1 7 1 ,850) (627, 1 8 1 )  47,419 (860,384) 

1 ,228,142 1,028.716 3,233.804 
!700,000) p, 1 S9,000! 3 , 126 !797,400) !3,333,400! 

(9 1 8,728) ( 1 , 1 02,708) 404,661 (749,98 1 )  (9S9,980) 

3.062.002 

(91 8,728) ( 1 , 1 02,708) 404,661 (749,981 )  2,1 02,022 

(9 1 8,728) ( 1 , 1 02,708) 404,661 (749,98 1 )  2,102.022 

3,013.987 1,685.538 2,71 9,770 1 ,746, I S0 7,789.802 

s 2,09S,2S9 s SB2,830 3, 1 24,431 996,169 s 9,891,824 

KVC 
Behavioral 

KVC Healthcare 
Foundation, Inc. Mlssourt1 Inc. Ellmlnatlons Consolidated 

1 , 198,974 s 32,397,400 
48,074 39,970,567 

35,087.798 

3,628,376 24,801 .979 
648,307 641,523 6,098,894 

637 687 9,789 
333.9S6 7, 1 99.009 

( I  3,467,493) 
166,384 (21 ,660) I S,380 

2,767,072 {2,767,072) 

3 ,582,400 S.829,930 !16,2 1 9, 1 85 )  145,565,436 

5,145,525 ( 1 ,847,269) 129,868,573 
2,087,870 41 5,835 ( 1 4, 1 34.21 3) I S,980,841 

909,405 !237.703! 671,702 

2,997,275 S,56 1 ,360 ! 16,2 1 9, 185! 146,S2 l , l  16 

585, 1 25 268,570 (955,680) 

478,965 5,969.627 
6,S56,S9S 348,500 

7, 14 1 ,720 1 ,096,035 S,0 1 3,947 

30S,96S 3,367,967 

1 ,0 1 1 , 1 67 1 ,0 1 1 , 1 67 

8,458,852 1 ,096,035 9,393,081  

2,399,721  2,399,721  

!1 ,0 1 1 , 1 67! ! 1 ,01 1 . 167) 

9,847,406 1 ,096,035 10,781,635 

1 1 ,587.392 4,643,395 37,680,461 

s 2 1 ,434,798 s S,739,430 s s 48,462,096 



KVC 
Health 

Systems, Inc. 
Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,388,890 
Investments 97,869 
Accowlts receivable 2,383,929 
Unbilled receivables 
Due to/from affiliate 801 ,309 
Contributions receivable 
Grants receivable 23,7 1 3  
Prepaid expenses and other 754.089 

Total cw-rent assets 7,449,799 

Property and Equipment, Net 560,736 

Contributions Receivable 

Other Assets 
Goodwill 
Funds held for deferred 

compensation 408,149 
Deposits and other assets 

408,149 

Total assets $ 8,418,684 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position 

June 30, 2021 

KVC 
Behavioral KVC KVC 

KVC Healthcare Behavioral Behavioral 
Behavioral West Healthcare Healthcare KVC 

HealthCare, Inc. Vi�inia, Inc. Kentuckl, Inc. Nebraska, Inc. Hoseltals, Inc. 

$ 1 , 1 35,879 $ 1 ,750,588 $ 3, 165, 1 79 $ 1 , 359,8 10 $ 5,635,927 

4,451,322 1 ,885,250 296,693 1 ,081 ,888 4, 1 09,604 
2,686,08 1 

(241 ,459) (95,228) ( 1 43,796) (42,452) (229,294) 

1 1 2,963 7,920 2,1 07,796 48,474 
2 1 3,564 25,276 60,352 44,368 1 2 1 ,04 1  

5,672,269 3,573,806 5,486,224 21492,088 1 2,323,359 

695,544 1 72,546 23,032 29,936 1 ,725,688 

545,000 

1 54,456 1 8,050 20,000 

1 54,456 563,050 20,000 

s 6,522,269 $ 3,746,352 $ 6,072,306 s 2,522,024 $ 14,069,047 

KVC 
Behavioral 

KVC Healthcare 
Foundation, Inc. Missouri, Inc. Eliminations Consolidated 

$ 10,438 $ 1 ,2 1 9,364 $ 1 7,666,075 
97,869 

373,735 1 4,582,421 
2,686,081 

( 1 9,3 1 0) (29,770) 
244,200 244,200 

2,300,866 
32,278 9,592 1 ,260,560 

267,606 1 ,572,921 38,8381072 

24,054,552 3,8 1 2,781 3 1 ,074,8 1 5  

230,3<>0 230,390 

545,000 

408, 1 49 
5,000 73,468 270,974 

5,000 73,468 1 ,224, 1 23 

$ 24,557,548 $ 5,459, 1 70 $ $ 71 ,367,400 

---------- ----------------



Liabilities and Net Assets 
Curren! Li11bill1ies 

Current maturities of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries 
Accrued compensated absences 
Other accrued expenses 
Deferred rc11enue 

Total current liabilities 

Long•lerm Debi 

Deferred Compensalion Obligalion 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

KVC 

Hoalth 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position (Continued) 

June 30, 2021 

KVC 

Behavioral KVC KVC 

KVC Healthcaro Behavioral Behavioral 
Behavioral Wost Hoalthcaro Hoalthcaro KVC KVC 

sxstoms, Inc. HoalthCaro, Inc. Vl!Jlinia, Inc. KontuckX
1 

Inc. Nobraska, Inc. Hoseltals, Inc. Foundation, Inc. 

s s - s 1 ,209,000 s 2, 1 20,200 s s 3 , 1 83,400 s S44,78 1 
I S3,397 9SS,084 228,299 S2,9S4 3 16,843 3 1 S,643 43 
S06,003 1 ,461 , 14S 3 1 3,07S 7 1 7,7SS 197,367 1 ,469,S98 
2 18,J 15 8S 1 ,484 178,435 361 ,407 149,641 6 10, 1 3 1  

2,638,393 l9S,220 37,4 19  100,220 38, 1 56 700,473 S,92S 
45,349 94,586 73,867 79,000 

3,5 16,108 3,508,282 2,060,8 14 3,3S2,S36 77S,874 6,279,24S 629,749 

12,340,407 

408,149 

3,924,257 3,508,282 2,060.814 3,352,536 77S,874 6,279,24S 12,970, 1 56 

4,494,427 3,0 1 3,987 1,685,538 2,719,770 1 ,746, 1 S0 7,789,802 1 0,576,225 
1 ,0 1 1 , 1 67 

4,494,427 3,01 3,987 1 ,685,538 2,719,770 1
1
746, 1 50 7,789,802 I I  587,392 

$ 8,4 18,684 s 6,522.269 s 3,746,352 s 6,072,306 s 2,522,024 s 14,069,047 s 24,S57,S48 

KVC 

Behavioral 
Hoalthcaro 

Missouri, Inc. Eliminations Consolidated 

s 471 ,SOO s 7,528,881 
42,491 2,064,7S4 

173,8S7 4,838,800 
70,178 2,439,591 
S7,749 3,773,5S5 

292,802 

8 1 5,775 20,938,383 

12,340,407 

408 149 

8 1 5,775 33,686,939 

4,643,39S 36,669,294 
1 ,0 1 1 , 167 

4 643,395 37,680 461 

5,459, 1 70 $ s 71 ,367,400 

---- ----- ---- -------- ---- __ ____._ ____ __._ __ 



KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Consolidating Schedule of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

KVC 
Behavioral KVC KVC KVC 

KVC KVC H11althcaro Behavioral Bohavioral Bohavloral 
Health Behavioral West Hoalthcaro Hoalthcara KVC KVC Hoalthcaro 

Sl!tems, Inc. HoalthCaro, Inc. Vl!]!inia1 Inc. Kentuck]!, Inc. Nebraska, Inc. Hos2itals, Inc. Foundation1 Inc. Missouri, Inc. Eliminations Consolidated 
Racnucs, Gains and Other Su11pon 

Without Donor Restrictions 
Reintegration 1111d adoption scn·ic:cs 32,9'>S.03U 47,Sl2 672,4SS s 33.714,997 
Child phx:1na Kniccs 27,1 1 7.492 9,079,203 429,47S 6,798,694 43.424,864 
Inpatient services 34,099,873 34,099,873 
Family preservation/in-home services 863,UIB 1 ,608,C,33 1 1 .2 13,868 6,261 ,49S 2,786,539 22,733,SSJ 
Conlributions and grants 22,163 1 ,462,067 133,303 2,718,33(, S I  S,SS9 283,369 s•n.012 320,376 6,U47,18S 
ln�csuncn1 income 33.768 3,4S6 1,766 2,659 1 . 100 37,3(,3 S65 690 81 ,367 
Miscellaneous S2 1,936 382,880 8,24 1 367,788 3,830 2,13U,Sll6 188,285 3,603,S46 
M1111agcmcn1 fee 12,564,616 (1 2,SM,616) 
lntcrcompany services 62,822 (36,SSU) 39,2UU (6S,472) 
lntcrcompany rent 2,344,223 (2,344,223) 

Total l'C\'cnucs, gains and 
oilier suppon wilhoul donor 
rcstncllons 1 3.2US,3U5 62,787.393 10,83 1 ,146 14,732.126 13,628.190 36,590,391 2,936,800 3.968,345 ( 14,974.3 1 1 ) l43.70S,38S 

Opcratin1t E1pcascs 
Client we S3,4US,29S 9,801 ,363 13,662,098 1 1 ,727,243 33,356,829 3,813,842 (1 ,780,473) 123,98(,,197 
Adniinistralivc nnd general 12,744,365 S,S 14,799 l ,0Ol,537 1,404,37') 1 , 192,374 3,089,269 2.)89,484 369.629 (13,193,838) 14.SI 1,998 
Fundraisins 574,309 71.867 646,176 

Total operating expenses 13,318,674 SB1920,094 I0.802,9UU 15.0(,(,,477 12,919,617  36,446,098 2,461.351 4 183,471 (141974,3 1 1} 1391144,371 

Oprratin1t Income: (Loss) (1 13,369) 3,867.299 28,246 (334,351)  708,S73 144,293 475,449 (21S, l 26) 4,561.014 

Other Income: (E1pcnsc:) 
Debt forgi�cncss income SS3,330 SSJ,330 
lntcrcompany 1ransfcrs (10,870,000) 4.96S,OOU 1.870,00U 3.300,U00 2SU UUO (3,46S,UUU! 4,SU0 00-0 lSSU,000! 

Escn1 (Ddicic:ncy) or Revenues O-.c:r 
E�penll."I ( IU,9113,)(19) 11,1132,299 1 .898,246 2,965,649 1,51 1 ,9113 (3,320,707) 4,975,449 (76S,126) S,1 14,344 

Net A111.-u With Donor R&.-atriclion1 
Conlrib111ions rccc:i,cd for propc:tty 

acq11is1110n1 1.0 1 1 , 167 I O i l  167 

Chllnj?C in Net A11et1 ( 10,983.369) 8,832,299 1 ,898,246 2.965.649 1 ,S l l ,903 (3.320,707) S,986,616 (765,126) 6,12S,SI I 

Net A1Kll. Bqinain1t of Vc•r IS ◄n.796 jS,B IB,312! !212.701! (24S.81'.I) 234 247 l l . l lO.S09 5 600.776 '-4118 521 31 ,5541950 

Net Assets, End of Vear 4,494,427 3,013,987 1 ,685,538 2,719,770 1,746,ISU 7,789,802 I l,S87,392 4,643.395 37,680,461 



KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Functional Expenses - KVC Health Systems, Inc. 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative Total 

Care and General Fund raising Expenses 

Salaries and wages s s 7,320,645 s s 7,320,645 
Payroll taxes 530,896 530,896 
Employee benefits 986,905 986,905 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 8,838,446 8,838,446 

Office supplies and printing 76,0 1 3  76,01 3  
Copier and fax expense 24, 1 56 24, 1 56 
Postage 25,592 25,592 
Employee recruitment and advertising 85,9 1 3  85,9 1 3  
Licenses and dues 6 1 ,408 61 ,408 
Insurance 1 77,299 1 77,299 
Travel 75,764 75,764 
Telephone 1 35,377 1 35,377 
Professional fees 985, 1 7 1  985, 1 7 1  
Contract labor 25, 1 52 25,1 52 
Contract physicians 
Contract unallowable expenses 
Consulting and other contractual expenses 349,8 1 3  349,8 1 3  
Staff development 468,465 468,465 
Promotion 24, 142 24, 1 42 
Office rent I l 

Equipment expenses 1 ,371 ,750 1 ,371 ,750 
Network services 295,593 295,593 
Maintenance and repairs 53, 1 52 53, 1 52 
Safety services and materials 1,04 1 1 ,04 1 
Food 262 262 
Food - outings 37,756 37,756 
Housekeeping supplies 1 ,893 1 ,893 
Miscellaneous housekeeping 45,309 45,309 
Utilities 4 1 ,859 4 1 ,859 
Payments to foster parents 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 
Foster family training 
Child care payments 
Medical supplies 1 3 1  1 3 1  
Vehicle expenses and repairs 1 8,058 18,058 
Vehicle rental 73,866 73,866 
General program supplies 13,876 1 3,876 
Clothing 
Miscellaneous 4 1 ,898 4 1 ,898 
Interest 
Bad debts 
Property tax expense 
Medicaid assessments 
Flex fund 
Kids activity fund 

Expenses before depreciation, amortization 
and intercompany fees 1 3,349, 1 56 13,349, 1 56 

Depreciation and amortization 1 70,623 1 70,623 
lntercompany management fees 
lntercompany services 1 62,744 162,744 
lntercompany rent 575,295 575,295 
Eliminations 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 s s 1 4,257,8 1 8  s s 1 4,257,8 1 8  
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Functional Expenses - KVC Behavioral HealthCare, Inc. 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative Total 
Care and General Fundraising Expenses 

Salaries and wages s 2 1 ,23 1 ,690 $ s $ 2 1 ,23 1 ,690 
Payroll taxes 1 ,669,825 1 ,669,825 
Employee benefits 3,639,626 3 ,639,626 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 26,54 1 ,1 4 1  26,54 1 ,1 4 1  

Office supplies and printing 39,549 39,549 
Copier and fax expense 1 23,035 1 23,035 
Postage 28,735 28,735 
Employee recruitment and advertising 49,893 49,893 
Licenses and dues 33,878 1 03,868 1 37,746 
Insurance 1 , 1 93,589 1 , 193,589 
Travel 539, 1 2 1  539, 1 2 1  
Telephone 449,401 449,401 
Professional fees 225,367 225,367 
Contract labor 147,750 147,750 
Contract physicians 426,8 1 7  426,8 1 7  
Contract unallowable expenses 57,566 57,566 
Consulting and other contractual expenses 526,570 526,570 
Staff development 79,498 79,498 
Promotion 1 59,642 1 59,642 
Office rent 605,4 1 3  605,4 1 3  
Equipment expenses 40,863 40,863 
Network services 77,642 77,642 
Maintenance and repairs 1 37,890 137,890 
Safety services and materials 76,899 76,899 
Food 45,405 45,405 
Food - outings 9,3 1 7  9,3 1 7  
Housekeeping supplies l l ,797 1 1 ,797 
Miscellaneous housekeeping 148,381 148,38 1  
Utilities 292,792 292,792 
Payments to foster parents 20,1 64,766 20, 164,766 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 105,074 1 05,074 
Foster family training 97,735 97,735 
Child care payments 62,086 62,086 
Medical supplies 391 391  
Vehicle expenses and repairs 1 32,441 1 32,44 1 
Vehicle rental 25 1 , 143 25 1 , 143 
General program supplies 247,798 247,798 
Clothing (250) (2S0) 
Miscellaneous 3,406 3,406 
Interest 
Bad debts (53,379) (53,379) 
Property tax expense 
Medicaid assessments 
Flex fund 4 19,361 4 1 9,36 1 
Kids activity fund 1 7,24 1 17 ,24 1 

Expenses before depreciation, amortization 
and intercompany fees 53,5 1 5,764 1 03 ,868 53,6 19,632 

Depreciation and amortization 1 1 2,990 1 1 2,990 
lntercompany management fees 5,395,861 5,395,861 
lntcrcompany services (84,648) (84,648) 
lntercompany rent 1 ,01 2,754 1 ,0 1 2,754 
Eliminations 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 $ 54,556,860 s 5,499,729 $ s 60,056,589 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Functional Expenses - KVC Behavioral Healthcare West Virginia, Inc. 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative Total 

Care and General Fundraising Expenses 

Salaries and wages $ 4,505,432 $ 66,647 $ $ 4,572,079 
Payroll truces 340,528 4,887 345,4 1 5  
Employee benefits 834,856 9,093 843,949 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 5,680,8 16 80,627 5,76 1 ,443 

Office supplies and printing 37,505 37,505 
Copier and fruc expense 35,304 551 35,86 1 
Postage 3,669 1 6  3,685 
Employee recruitment and advertising 37, 1 24 37, 1 24 
Licenses and dues 19,484 19,484 
Insurance 208,000 208,000 
Travel 1 1 8 , 124 1 1 8, 1 24 
Telephone 1 36,808 1 , 1 04 1 37,9 1 2  
Professional fees 
Contract labor 
Contract physicians 
Contract unallowable expenses 30 30 
Consulting and other contractual expenses 45,695 45,695 
Staff development 47,87 1 1 ,982 49,853 
Promotion 1 2,938 1 2,938 
Office rent 1 89,896 1 89,896 
Equipment expenses 1 1 4,680 1 1 4,680 
Network services 1 7,898 1 7,898 
Maintenance and repairs 1 2,677 1 2,677 
Safety services and materials 9, 1 1 9 9,1 19 
Food 3,4 1 9  3,4 1 9  
Food - outings 1 2,630 346 1 2,976 
Housekeeping supplies 674 674 
Miscellaneous housekeeping 52,733 52,733 
Utilities 38,275 38,275 
Payments to foster parents 2,96 1 ,267 2,96 1 ,267 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 
Foster family training 45,387 45,387 
Child care payments 
Medical supplies 
Vehicle expenses and repairs 94,384 94,384 
Vehicle rental 1 86,059 1 86,059 

General program supplies 104,792 1 04,792 
Clothing 30,900 30,900 
Miscellaneous 6,487 6,487 
Interest 5,038 5,038 
Bad debts 7,000 7,000 
Property true expense 
Medicaid assessments 
Flex fund 1 1 ,579 1 1 ,579 
Kids activity fund 993 993 

Expenses before depreciation, amortization 
and intercompany fees 1 0,289,255 84,632 1 0,373,887 

Depreciation and amortization 1 0,324 7,765 1 8,089 

lntercompany management fees 895,357 895,357 
lntercompany services (26,498) (26,498) 
lntercompany rent 93,000 93,000 
Eliminations 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 $ 10 ,366,081 $ 987,754 $ $ 1 1 ,353,835 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Functional Expenses - KVC Behavioral Healthcare Kentucky, Inc. 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative Total 

Care and General Fund raising Expenses 

Salaries and wages $ 9,709,089 $ 1S,953 $ s 9,785,042 

Payroll taxes 73 1 ,207 4,293 735,SOO 

Employee benefits 1 ,65S,936 22,88S 1 ,678,82 1 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 1 2,096,232 103, 1 3 1  1 2, 199,363 

Office supplies and printing 26,70 1 383 27,084 

Copier and fax expense 1 , 1 63 1 , 1 63 

Postage 10, 1 80 247 10,427 

Employee recruitment and advertising 94,727 168 94,89S 
Licenses and dues 28,329 19,6 1 1 47,940 

Insurance 32 1 ,806 27 32 1 ,833 

Travel 298,780 298,780 

Telephone 203,582 S,S4S 209, 127 

Professional fees 66,838 66,838 
Contract labor 

Contract physicians 36,538 36,S38 
Contract unallowable expenses 138,6 1 8  735 139,3S3 

Consulting and other contractual expenses 3,77 1 3,77 1 

Staff development 1 29,3 10  984 1 30,294 

Promotion I SO I SO 

Office rent 24 1 ,700 32,940 274,640 

Equipment expenses 19S,3 1 2  8, 176 203,488 

Network services 14 ,947 2, 160 1 7, 107 

Maintenance and repairs 2,72S 2,725 

Safety services and materials 4,840 1 , 197 6,037 

Food 1 5  I S  

Food - outings 2,887 2,887 

Housekeeping supplies 1 8  1 8  
Miscellaneous housekeeping 17,8S6 248 18, 104 

Utilities 36,SSO 3, IOS 39,68S 

Payments to foster parents 100,881 100,881 

Subcontractor - foster home payments 

Foster family training 1 60 160 

Child care payments 

Medical supplies 

Vehicle expenses and repairs 13,644 13,644 

Vehicle rental ( 1 3,565) ( 1 3,S6S) 

General program supplies 9,933 285 10,2 18  

Clothing 

Miscellaneous 8,439 8,439 

Interest 1 ,767 1 ,767 

Bad debts 3,000 3,000 

Property tax expense S,064 1 ,428 6,492 

Medicaid assessments 

Flex fund 738,928 738,928 

Kids activity fund 65 65 
Expenses before depreciation, amortization 

and intercompany fees 14,84 1 ,753 1 80,S38 1 5,022,29 1 

Depreciation and amortization 1 3,598 961 14,5S9 

lntercompany management fees 1 ,494,401 1 ,494,401 

lntercompany services ( 165,243) ( 165,243) 

lntercompany rent 1 1 7,623 1 1 7,623 

Eliminations 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 s 1 4,807,73 1 s 1 ,675,900 s s 16,483,63 1 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc . 
Functional Expenses - KVC Behavioral Healthcare Nebraska, Inc. 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative Total 
Care and General Fund raising Expenses 

Salaries and wages $ 2,620,678 $ 46,6 1 I $ $ 2,667,289 
Payroll taxes 1 97,526 3,605 201 , 1 3 1  
Employee benefits 398,207 10,024 408,231  

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 3,2 1 6,4 1 1  60,240 3,276,65 1 

Office supplies and printing 1 6,440 535 1 6,975 
Copier and fax expense 1 0,786 1 0,786 
Postage 8,841 404 9,245 
Employee recruitment and advertising 20,426 20,426 
Licenses and dues 1(936 3,978 20,9 14  
Insurance 148,2 1 5 .00 1 48,2 1 5  
Travel 46, 1 59 835 46,994 
Telephone 47,865 807 48,672 
Professional fees 4,252 4,252 
Contract labor 
Contract physicians 7,533 7,533 
Contract unallowable expenses 4,060 4,060 
Consulting and other contractual expenses 72,008 72,008 
Staff development 49,7 18  305 50,023 
Promotion 7,082 7,082 
Office rent 378,659 378,659 
Equipment expenses 1 5,754 15,754 
Network services 7,556 387 7,943 
Maintenance and repairs 1 ,753 1 ,753 
Safety services and materials 1 ,864 25 1 ,889 
Food 73 1 2  85 
Food - outings 7,023 25 1 7,274 
Housekeeping supplies 
Miscellaneous housekeeping 4,2 1 1 263 4,474 
Utilities 5,483 3 1 5  5,798 
Payments to foster parents 7,020,68 1 7,020,681 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 
Foster family training 64,490 64,490 
Child care payments 
Medical supplies 
Vehicle expenses and repairs 1 0,879 34 1 0,9 13  
Vehicle rental 20,495 20,495 
General program supplies 4 1 ,0 1  I 4 1 ,0 1 1 
Clothing 
Miscellaneous 5 , 185 5, 1 85 
Interest 
Bad debts 7,000 7,000 
Property tax e'!pense 
Medicaid assessments 
Flex fund 1 5,436 1 5,436 
Kids activity fund 

Expenses before depreciation, amortization 
and intercompany fees 1 1 ,280,033 72,643 1 1 ,352,676 

Depreciation and amortization 9,750 9,750 
lntercompany management fees 735,659 735,659 
lntercompany services (26,498) (26,498) 
lntercompany rent 
Eliminations 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 s 1 1 ,263,285 $ 808,302 s s 12,07 1 ,587 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Functional Expenses - KVC Hospitals, Inc. 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative Total 

Care and General Fundraising Expenses 

Salaries and wages s 18,077,626 $ $ $ 18,077,626 
Payroll taxes 1 ,469,459 1 ,469,459 
Employee benefits 2,699,034 ( 1 ,757) 2,697,277 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 22,246, 1 1 9  ( 1 ,757) 22,244,362 

Office supplies and printing 89,0 12 89,0 1 2  
Copier an d  fa x  expense 35,907 35,907 
Postage 8,7 19 8,7 19 
Employee recruitment and advertising 80,564 80,564 

Licenses and dues 28,269 28,269 
Insurance 828,582 828,582 

Travel 4 1 ,8 1 7  4 1 ,8 1 7  
Telephone 1 20,7 1 0  1 20,7 1 0  
Professional fees 206,440 206,440 
Contract labor 908,635 908,635 
Contract physicians 3,946,624 3,946,624 
Contract unallowable expenses 58,323 58,323 
Consulting and other contractual expenses 384,756 384,756 

Staff development 1 44,975 144,975 
Promotion 20 1 ,762 20 1 ,762 
Office rent 380,706 380,706 
Equipment expenses 523,900 523,900 
Network services 65,05 1 65,05 1 
Maintenance and repairs 429,540 429,540 
Safety services and materials 1 63,981 1 63,98 1 
Food 970,663 970,663 
Food - outings 48,770 48,770 

Housekeeping supplies 87,897 87,897 

Miscellaneous housekeeping 738,326 738,326 
Utilities 368,35 1  368,35 1 
Payments to foster parents 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 
Foster family training 
Child care payments 
Medical supplies 808, 1 02 808, 102 
Vehicle expenses and repairs 56,467 56,467 
Vehicle rental 50,463 50,463 
General program supplies 247,74 1 247,74 1 
Clothing 
Miscellaneous 27,297 27,297 
Interest 13 ,264 1 3,264 
Bad debts 
Property tax expense 572 572 
Medicaid assessments 14,643 14,643 
Flex fund 2,405 2,405 
Kids activity fund 20,239 20,239 

Expenses before depreciation, amortization 
and intercompany fees 34,349,592 ( 1 ,757) 34,347,835 

Depreciation and amortization 278,329 278,329 
lntercompany management fees 4,383,603 4,383,603 
lntercompany services ( 1 9,96 1 )  (1 9,96 1 ) 
Intercompany rent 968,400 968,400 
Eliminations 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 s 35,576,360 $ 4,38 1 ,846 s $ 39,958,206 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Functional Expenses - KVC Foundation, Inc. 

Year l;nded June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative Total 

Care and General Fundraising Expenses 

Salaries and wages s $ 85,306 $ 462,761 $ 548,067 
Payroll taxes 7 , 172 36,380 43,552 
Employee benefits 1 3,724 49,342 63,066 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 1 06,202 548,483 654,685 

Office supplies and printing 4 1 8  1 5,836 1 6,254 
Copier and fax expense 
Postage 1 6  1 ,728 1 ,744 
Employee recruitment and advertising 100 100 
Licenses and dues 27 1 9,694 19,72 1  
Insurance 8,535 8,535 
Travel 5,598 1 ,3 5 1  6,949 
Telephone 770 4,869 5,639 
Professional fees 
Contract labor 
Contract physicians 
Contract unallowable expenses 
Consulting and other contractual expenses 3 ,868 9,339 13 ,207 
Staff development 170 894 1 ,064 
Promotion 3,9 1 6  3,9 16  
Office rent 60, 149 26,6 1 2  86,761 
Equipment expenses 349 4,954 5,303 
Network services 
Maintenance and repairs 7 1 ,646 7 1 ,647 
Safety services and materials 42,323 1 6 1  42,484 
Food 4 1 2  425 837 
Food - outings 453 1 ,998 2,45 1 
Housekeeping supplies 6 ,628 6,628 
Miscellaneous housekeeping 22,362 22,362 
Utilities 73,723 247 73,970 
Payments to foster parents 23 23 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 
Foster family training 
Child care payments 
Medical supplies 
Vehicle expenses and repairs 1 ,475 3,253 4,728 
Vehicle rental 274 1 7,875 1 8, 149 
General program supplies 568 1 ,408 1 ,976 
Clothing 
Miscellaneous 36 36 
Interest 530,70 1 530,70 1 
Bad debts 
Property tax expense 
Medicaid assessments 
Flex fund 
Kids activity fund 

Expenses before depreciation, amortization 
and intercompany fees 928, 1 68 671 ,702 1 ,599,870 

Depreciation and amortization 1 ,084,244 1 ,084,244 
lntercompany management fees 146,777 146,777 
lntercompany services (7 1 ,3 1 9) 237,703 166,384 
lntercompany rent 
Eliminations 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 s s 2,087,870 s 909,405 s 2,997,275 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Functional Expenses - KVC Behavioral Healthcare Missouri, Inc. 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Client Administrative Total 

Care and General Fundraising Expenses 

Salaries and wages $ 3,065,520 $ $ $ 3,065,520 
Payroll taxes 240,592 240,592 
Employee benefits 406,739 406,739 

Total salaries, wages and related expenses 3,7 1 2,851 3,7 12 ,85 1 

Office supplies and printing 22, 1 3 1  22, 1 3 1  
Copier an d  fax expense 9,466 9,466 
Postage 5,955 5,955 
Employee recruitment and advertising 7,676 7,676 
Licenses and dues ( 1 0,247) ( 10,247) 
Insurance 167,295 1 67,295 
Travel 1 1 , 149 1 1 , 1 49 
Telephone 4 1 ,975 80 42,055 
Professional fees 4,0 1 5  4,0 1 5  
Contract labor 1 1 ,740 1 1 ,740 
Contract physicians 53,638 53,638 
Contract unallowable expenses 32,0 1 2 32,0 1 2  
Consulting and other contractual expenses 69,097 69,097 
Staff development 28,042 28,042 
Promotion 1 3 ,487 1 3,487 
Office rent 
Equipment expenses 1 32,639 132,639 
Network services 5,482 (80) 5,402 
Maintenance and repairs 57,95 1 57,95 1  
Safety services and materials 30,482 30,482 
Food 1 94,993 1 94,993 
Food - outings 5 , 189 5,1 89 
Housekeeping supplies 29, 1 1 3  29,1 13  
Miscellaneous housekeeping 1 09,273 1 09,273 
Utilities 75,246 75,246 
Payments to foster parents 1 8,703 1 8,703 
Subcontractor - foster home payments 
Foster family training 64 64 
Child care payments 
Medical supplies 14 , I02 1 4, 1 02 
Vehicle expenses and repairs 8,5 14 8,5 1 4  
Vehicle rental 26,550 26,550 
General program supplies 35,824 35,824 
Clothing 2,476 2,476 
Miscellaneous 7,245 7,245 
Interest 1 ,965 1 ,965 
Bad debts 47,000 47,000 
Property tax expense 2,204 2,204 
Medicaid assessments 
Flex fund 2 1 S  2 1 5  
Kids activity fund 4,664 4,664 

Expenses before depreciation, amortization 
and intercompany fees 4,990, 1 76 4,990,1 76 

Depreciation and amortization 1 77,009 1 77,009 
Intercompany management fees 4 1 5,835 4 1 5,835 

lntercompany services (2 1 ,660) (2 1 ,660) 
lntercompany rent 
Eliminations 

Totals, Year Ended June 30, 2022 s 5, 145,525 $ 4 15,835 $ s 5,56 1 ,360 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Schedule of Revenue and Expenses for 

Kansas Department for Children and Fami lies 

Reintegration/Foster Care/Adoption Services 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Area 3 
Revenue 

DCF grant $ 15,352,761 $ 

DCF reimbursable cost 2,113,936 
DCF CSA revenue 11,153 
DCF Cares Act funding 
DCF incentive payment revenue 151,963 

Contributions 1 ,8 1 8  

Grants 26,906 
Other - billable services 335,918 
Other - miscellaneous 7, 1 88 

Total revenue 18,001,643 

Expenses 

Salaries and wages (including taxes and benefits) 

Administration 1,552,944 
Case management 8,777,798 
Client transportation 769,176 

Total salaries and wages 11,099,918 

Operating, property and travel 
Direct operating 1,371,009 

Direct property and equipment 1,154,714 

Direct transportation and travel 722,011 

Total placement costs 3,247,734 

Other costs 
Unreimbursed medical 
Flex funds 202,001 

Reimbursable placement costs 2,098,255 

Reimbursable daycare costs 15,681 
Other - miscellaneous 72,883 
Other - management fee 1,638,774 

Total other costs 4,027,594 

Total expenses 18,375,246 

Revenues over (under) expenses $ (373,603) $ 

Area 6 Total 

11,999,480 $ 27,352,241 

1,715,667 3,829,603 

9,206 20,359 

2,254 2,254 

223,480 375,443 

5,672 7,490 

21,740 48,646 

271,431 607,349 

6,320 13,508 

14,255,250 32,256,893 

1,254,612 2,807,556 

7,043,718 15,821,516 

518,843 1,288,019 

8,817,173 19,917,091 

907,194 2,278,203 

605,078 1,759,792 

435,673 l ,  157,684 

1 ,947,945 5,195,679 

98 98 

231,611 433,612 

1,693,965 3,792,220 

21,702 37,383 

53,022 125,905 

1,247,577 2,886,351 

3,247,975 7,275,569 

14,013,093 32,388,339 

242,157 $ (131,446) 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Schedule of Revenue and Expenses for 

Kansas Department for Children and Families 

Kansas Child Placing Services 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Revenue 

Revenue - DCF (administrative) 

Revenue - other payers (administrative) 

Foster parent maintenance (paid by DCF) 

Foster parent maintenance (other payers) 

Contributions 

Home study fees 

Children's Alliance training reimbursement 

DCF Cares Act funding 

Other income 

Total revenue 

Expenses 

Salaries and wages (including taxes and benefits) 

Administration 

Direct 

Recruitment and training 

Treatment 

Total salaries and wages 

Operating, property and travel 

Direct operating 

Direct property and equipment 

Direct transportation and travel 

Recruitment and training operating 

Recruitment and training property and equipment 

Recruitment and training transportation and travel 

Total placement costs 

Other costs 

Foster parent payment (paid by DCF) 

Foster parent payment (paid by other payers) 

Other - unallowable 

Other - management fee 

Total other costs 

Total expenses 

Revenues under expenses 

$ 7,453,394 

1 6,092,964 

103 ,785 

352,832 

45 ,932 

396,000 

72,679 

26,065 

22,322 

24,565,973 

603,947 

3 , 1 50,932 

636, 1 74 

1 82,632 

4,573,685 

678,748 

402,49 1 

53, 1 72 

222,756 

66, 1 56 

3 1 ,056 

1 ,454,379 

1 6,088,53 1 

352,832 

1 1 ,006 

2,256,673 

1 8,709,042 

24,737, 1 06 

$ ( 1 7 1 , 1 33) 
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Revenue 
Grant revenue 

Expenses 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Schedule of System of Care Grant 

Agreement Number - G210214 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Salaries and wages 
Taxes and benefits 
Supplies 
Rent 
Phone 
Indirect 
Unallowable 

Total expenses 

Revenues under expenses 

$ 72,000 

48,780 
14,2 1 6  

389 
1 ,729 
1 ,035 
6,44 1 

26,4 1 1 
99,00 1 

$ (27,00 1 )  
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Pro9ram or Cluster Title 

Tille IV-E Prevention Program 

Tide IV-E Prevention Program 

Total Assistance Listing # 93.472 

Foster Care • Title IV-E 

Foster Care • TIiie IV-E 

Foster Care • Title IV-E 

Foster Care • Tnle IV-E 

Total Assistance Listing # 93.658 

Adoption Assistance 

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child 
Welfare Services Program 

COVID-1 9  Stephanie Tubbs 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Federal 
Assistance 

Listing Pass-Through 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Number Entl� ldentl!xlng Number 

US Depanment of Health and Human Services 
passed through the Kentucky Cabinet for Health 
and Family Services 93.472 PON2 736 2000003297/3298/3299/3300/3301/3302 

U.S Depanment of Health and Human Services 
passed through the Kentucky Cabinet for Health 
and Family Sesvices 93.472 PON2 736 2200001424/1427/1428/1429/1430 

U.S. Department of Health and Hul11ll!I Services 
passed through the Kansas State Department for 
Children and Families 93.658 2019-KVC-RTHT/PPS-2019-CPA-KVC-1 6/ 

PPS-2019-RF-KVC-26/2019-KVC-CMJ 

U.S Depanment of Health and Human Services 
passed through Missouri Dcpwtment of Social 
Services 93 658 2019-KVC-CM6 

CS202476009 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

passed through the Nebraska Department of Health 
and Humm Services 93.658 G-2 101  NEFOST/G-220 I NEFOST 

U S. Department of Health and Human Services 
passed through the Kentucky Cabinet for Health 
and Family Services 93 658 PON2 736 200000 I 542 

U.S. Dcpanment of Health and Human Services 
passed through the Kansas State Department for 
Children and Families 93.659 PPS-2019-CPA-KVC-16/2019-KVC-CMJ 

2019-KVC-CM6/2019-KVC-AOOPT 
U S. Department of Health and Human Services 

passed through the Kansas State Depanment for 
Children and Families 93 645 Family Services - Flex Spending 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Jones Child Wdfare Services Program passed through the Kansas State Depanment for 

Children and Families 93.645 IV-B CWS Pandem1c Grant 

Total Assistance Listing # 93.645 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Schedule. 

Passed 
Through to Total Federal 

Subreclelents Exeendltures 

1 , 1 94,549 

2 526 556 

3
1
721 1 05 

S,775,644 

3 1 ,826 

189,748 

1 073 203 

7 070 42 1 

228,8 14 

14,458 

28 164 

42 822 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Program or Cluster Title 

Social Services Block Grant 

John H Chafce Foster Care 
Program for Successful 
Transition to Adulthood 

Enhance Safety of Children Affected 
by Substance Abuse 

Adoption Opportunities 

Adoption and Legal Guardianship 
Incentive Payments 

COVID- 19 Provider Relief Fund 
and American Rescue Plan 
(ARP) Rural Distribution 

Federal GrantorlPass-Through Grantor 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
passed through the Kansas State Department for 
Children and Families 

U S. Depanmenl of Health and Human Services 
passed through the Kansas State Depanment for 
Children and Families 

U S. Depanment of Health and Human Services 
passed through the University of Kansas Center 
for Research, Inc. 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
passed through the University of Kansas Center 
for Research, Inc 

US. Depanment of Health and Human Services 
passed through the Kansas Stale Depanment for 
Children and Families 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Federal 
Assistance 

Usting 
Number 

93.667 

93.674 

93.087 

93.652 

93.603 

93.498 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Schedule. 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying Number 

201 9-KVC-CM3/20 I 9-KVC-CM6 

2019-K VC-CM3/2019-K VC-CM6 

90CU0079-02-00/90CU0079-03-00 

90COl 139-0I -00/90CO I IJ9-0I-0I 

PPS-202 1 -FCPS-03 

None 

Passed 
Through to 

Subreclplents 

s 

Total Federal 
Expenditures 

3,940,737 

52,4 1 6  

1 53,337 

6,660 

142,380 

I ,  I SS,675 

24,725,520 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Note 1 : Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the 
federal award activity of the Organization under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is 
not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of 
the Organization. 

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are l imited as to reimbursement 
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal 
course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. 

Note 3: Indirect Cost Rate 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. has elected not to use the I O  percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Note 4: Providers Included 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes KVC Behavioral HealthCare, Inc. 
TIN# 480770308, KVC Behavioral Healthcare Kentucky, Inc. TIN# 270795565, KVC 
Behavioral Healthcare Nebraska, Inc. TIN# 270408957, and KVC Behavioral Healthcare West 
Virginia, Inc. TIN# 3 1 1 770280. 
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FORV/S 
1201 Walnut Street, Suite 1700 � Kansas City, MO 64106 

P 816.221.6300 / F 816.221.6380 

forvis.com 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Board of Directors 
KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Olathe, Kansas 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of KVC 
Health Systems, Inc. (the "Organization"}, which comprise the Organization's consolidated statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional 
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 1 5, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the 
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control} as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organization's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control ,  such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Organization's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

------------------------5-1 �) PRAXIT'I r\;:-, •:· �•· •· . . . . ... ... .. . 
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Board of Directors 
KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Page 2 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the consolidated financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

FOtt\J IS, L.t.,P 

Kansas C ity, Missouri 
December 1 5, 2022 

DHHR FWANCE 

JAN - 3 2023 

fRlECEIVED 
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FORV/S 
1201 Walnut Street. Suite 1 700 I Kansas City, MO 64106 

P 816.221 .6300 I F 816.221 .6380 

forvis.com 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Board of Directors 
KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Olathe, Kansas 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Qualified and Unmodified Opinions 

We have audited KVC Health Systems, Inc. (the Organization) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audits in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the Organization's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 

2022. The Organization's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Qualified Opinion on COVID- 19 Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural 
Distribution 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the "Basis for Qualified and Unmodified 
Opinions" section of our report, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on COVID-1 9 Provider Relief 
Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs 

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major 
federal programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

------------------------5-3 � PRAXIT'I r� . . . . , . . . . .. . ... . . . . . . . 



Board of Directors 
KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Page 2 

Basis for Qualified and Unmodified Opinions 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States ( Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in 
the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance" section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Matter Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion on COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American 
Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the Organization did not 
comply with requirements regarding Federal Assistance Listing No. 93.498 COVID-1 9 Provider Relief 
Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution as described in finding number 2022-001 for 
Allowable Costs/Cost Principles and Reporting. 

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the Organization to comply with the 
requirements applicable to that program. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation , and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
Organization's federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect 
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from 
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on 
compliance about the Organization's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as 
a whole. 
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Board of Directors 
KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Page 3 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional j udgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Other Matters 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Organization's 
response to the noncompliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's response was not subjected to the other 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. The Organization is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit 
finding included in our auditor's report. The Organization's corrective action plan was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
"Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance" section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify a certain 
deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency 
in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs as item 2022-001 to be a material weakness. 
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Board of Directors 
KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Page 4 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Organization's 
response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's response was not 
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on the response. The Organization is responsible for preparing a corrective action 
plan to address each audit finding included in our auditor's report. The Organization's corrective action 
plan was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on it. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

FOrtV IS, L-t-,P 

Kansas City, Missouri 
December 1 5, 2022 

DHHR fWANCE 

JAN -.a wn 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

1 .  Type of report the auditor issued on whether the consolidated financial statements audited were 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP): 

� Unmodified D Qual ified D Adverse D Disclaimer 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

3 .  Noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements 
noted? 

Federal Awards 

4. Internal control over major federal awards programs: 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Material weakness( es) identi fled? 

0 Yes 

0 Yes 

□ Yes 

□ Yes 

� Yes 

5 .  Type of  auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: 

� None reported 

� None reported 

□ No 

Mary Lee Al len Promoting Safe and Stable Families Program and Title lV-E Prevention Program 

IX] Unmodified D Qualified D Adverse D Disclaimer 

COVID- 1 9  Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution 

D Unmodified � Qualified D Adverse D Disclaimer 

6. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported by 
2 CFR 200 .5 1 6(a)? � Yes □ No 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

7. Identification of major federal programs: 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Mary Lee Allen Promoting Safe and Stable Families Program 
Title IV-E Prevention Program 
COVID- 1 9  Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural 

Distribution 

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000. 

Assistance 
Listing 

Numbers 

93.556 
93.472 

93.498 

9. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? � Yes □ No 
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KVC Health Systems, Inc. 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

Reference 
Number Finding 

No matters are reportable. 

Section Ill - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs 

Reference 
Number Finding 

2022-00 I U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 

Direct Program: COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund - 93.498 

Criteria or Specific Requirement - Reporting (45 CFR 75. 342) and Activities 
Allowed/Una/lowed and Cost Principles (Pub L. No. I I 6- l 36, I 34 Stat. 563 and Pub 
L. No. I /6- /39, /34 Stat. 622 and 623). The Provider Relief Fund (PRF) was 
established in the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act, 
P.L. 1 1 6- 1 36) to reimburse, through grants or other mechanisms, el igible health care 
providers for increased expenses or lost revenue attributable to Coronavirus Disease 
(COVID- 1 9). Entities that received more than $ 1 0,000 (either one time or in the 

aggregate) are required to report the uses of their funds, including the lost revenue 
reimbursement and documentation of how the lost revenue was calculated. In addition, 
management is responsible for establ ishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
costs directly and indirectly charged to federal awards. 

Condition - The Organization is required to prepare and submit period two and three of 
Provider Relief Fund reporting to HHS. The required reporting is to be prepared using 

accurate financial information. The Organization incorrectly calculated their 
COVID- I 9-related lost revenues for the required reporting. 

Questioned Costs - None 

Context - Out of a population of three provider relief fund reports flied by the Organization, 
testing the Provider Relief Fund report for period two and associated lost revenue 
calculation for KVC hsopital entity (TIN 271 672 1 59), it was determined the lost revenues 

for the third and fourth quarters of 202 1 were reported and calculated incorrectly. The 

Organization did not properly include correct amounts within the lost revenue calculations 

resulting in a material under-reporting of lost revenues within the quarters reported. 

Effect - Lost revenue was not accurately calculated or reported. 
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Reference 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Number Finding 

2022-00 1 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 
continued Direct Program: COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund - 93.498 

Cause - Internal Controls were not in place to ensure the Organization's calculation 
was properly reviewed for the use of correct formulas or data input. 

Identification as a Repeat Finding - Not applicable. 

Recommendation - The Organization should continue to improve its understanding of the 
guidance related to this type of reporting and implement additional controls over future 
reporting periods to help ensure guidance is followed. 

View of Responsible Official and Planned Corrective Actions - The Organization 

agrees with this finding. See separate auditee documentation for planned corrective action. 
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Reference 
Number 

KVC Health Systems, Inc. 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Summary of Finding 

No matters are reportable. 

Status 
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